Reply of Pre-bid Query for Ka x Ka HTS (SAC/HPUR/2018E0670901)

	SN
	Query
	Reply

	
	Technical Queries
	

	1. 
	What is the type of OFC Cable between Main / Diversity sites? Is single mode /multi mode & type of connector LC/SC?
	Vendor to consider single mode OFC with SC connector. 

	2. 
	Scope of Laying of OFC between main & diversity sites? Any civil works required?
	OFC between main and diversity is the responsibility of SAC. Vendor needs to install the OFC interfacing equipment at both the ends. No civil work envisaged in this context.

	3. 
	What are the interfacing equipment required for OFC?
	Dark fiber will be available between main and diversity sites and vendor to install the OFC interfacing equipment to interface respective signals.

	4. 
	Site survey- SAC to provide previous Soil survey reports for designated sites for better understanding of scope of civil work involved.  
	SAC will not provide any soil report. Vendor is responsible to carry out the soil survey to design the antenna foundation as per RFP.

	5. 
	Site information/ Site layout for each site is required for preparation of proposal.
	Vendor to provide their site layout / site requirement including space, power, number of racks etc and accordingly SAC will facilitate for the same at all sites. 

	6. 
	Any sites are on ‘rooftop’? In such case, necessary civil permissions and approvals from competent authorities will be in scope of SAC. 
	Vendor should quote for the detailed price break-up for rooftop installation in its quote, as an optional item. However, vendor not quoting the rooftop price separately will lead to a conclusion that the installation cost for rooftop and ground is same.

In case of roof-top installation necessary Civil permission and approvals from competent authorities will be taken by SAC.

	7. 
	Locations are inside ISRO campus or outside. If outside, amenities like  security, water, power connections for construction, installation activities to be provided
	SAC will share the final locations at the time of DDR. Outside amenities will be provided. The premises will be govt. premises, hence security should not be a concern, however, safe material transportation, delivery, and installation is the responsibility of vendor at all sites. 

	8. 
	Whether approach roads for vehicle movement available or not? If not available, in whose scope?
	SAC will facilitate the approach road at site.



	9. 
	Baseband NMS?  Clarity on the same to be given.
	Baseband NMS is not under the scope of this RFP. But there should be a provision to interface HMC with baseband NMS through IP interface.

	10. 
	As per understanding BDC shall have inbuilt two LOs (LO1 & LO2) for different Bands.
	Yes. Vendor may propose any other suitable configuration meeting all specifications in RFP.

	11. 
	SAC to provide power at control room. 
	SAC will arrange AC power supply at all sites.

	12. 
	Control room construction is not in scope of this RFP. 
	Yes

	13. 
	Tentative Room height of control room. 
	10 feet approx.

	14. 
	Please confirm the distance between Control Room & Antenna. Also confirm that the length of cable tray /trench will not exceed 30m in any of the site


	Tentative distance between antenna location and control room is 200m typical as mentioned in the RFP. Refer page no. 31 (specs no. 61) of RFP.

	15. 
	The offer must contain sufficient data and material to prove that bidding vendor possesses 5 years or more than 5 years of experience as on the date of opening the technical bid in the similar type of work, like handling the project of the similar nature, involving end to end system engineering, design, delivery, installation & commissioning involving large antenna installation as described in this RFP. Vendor should submit the relevant documents clearly and unambiguously stating their previous experiences in executing similar type of work.
	It will be as per RFP.

	16. 
	For antenna hub system, the required experience is as follows: 

a. Large antenna installations of 7.5 meter and above with tracking system 

b. Frequency of operation – C/extC/Ku- Band or higher bands 

c. Simultaneous transmit and receive capability including interactive networks.

 All three (a to c) above specified experience has to be for the same antenna installation setup.

(All three (a to c) above specified experience either to be for the same antenna installation setup or in projects employing different antennas)


	Our RFP requirement is firm & Final

	17. 
	We understand that SAC has finalized the location of HTS Gateways (Main & Diversity). Please share the exact location and geological survey report if any. Please also confirm if SAC
has obtained the NOCC & Site Clearance approvals.
	Vendor to consider the tentative locations mentioned in the RFP. Exact locations will be shared at the time of DDR. Vendor must carry out the soil survey to design the antenna foundation as per RFP. SAC has not taken any of the said clearance approvals.

	18. 
	Whether SAC has approval from Regulatory Authority for its proposed Network or yet to receive. Please clarify.
	SAC will only provide necessary documents for these clearances, however, vendor has to facilitate and obtain these clearances.

	19. 
	For importing RF equipment the contractor has to obtain import license for which AIP of the Network where the RF is deployed is mandatory. Do SAC has AIP for the Network. Please clarify.
	SAC will only provide necessary documents for these clearances, however, vendor has to facilitate and obtain these clearances after PO placement.

	20. 
	The regulatory clearance like NOCC clearance, SACFA etc. Is needed for operating the Network. Kindly clarify if SAC has all these permissions available. If not when they will get the same. We understand delay if any in obtaining these approvals & import licensees, will not be considered in delivery period, and
equivalent extension in delivery period will be provided to contractor.
	SAC-ISRO will obtain regulatory clearance like NOCC clearance, SACFA needed for operation.

However, vendor will have to get import license and SAC-ISRO will made available required document for obtaining import license.

 

	21. 
	Please clarify, whether Antenna has to be installed on ground or any roof top / structure. So that accordingly Bidder will load with financial cost.
	Vendor should quote for the detailed price break-up for rooftop installation in its quote, as an optional item. However, vendor not quoting the rooftop price separately will lead to a conclusion that the installation cost for rooftop and ground is same.

	22. 
	In the given figure, main station diagram, it shows two (2) nos. of Polarization connected with HPA. What is the Bandwidth to transmit from each Polarization, in order to prepare proper link-budget for max. output power of HPA.
	Bandwidth to transmit from each Polarization is 2 GHz.

	23. 
	Requested to clear picture for maximum bandwidth on each beam and number of beams to cater from each HUB.
	BW of each user beam is 500 MHz and Each hub will cater 8 beams (4 user beams in each pole). 

	24. 
	Base band system is not part of this RFP, Kindly delete this part in HUB management system clause.
	Baseband NMS is not under the scope of this RFP. However, there should be a provision to interface HMC with baseband NMS through IP interface.

	25. 
	We understand that SAC will provide the storage space or warehouse at each gateway, for storage of supplied equipments. SAC will also take care of its security (supplied equipments). Please clarify.
	All hub premises will be govt. premises and hence security should not be a concern however, safe material transportation, delivery and installation at all sites is the responsibility of the vendor.

	26. 
	Main Gateway & Diversity Gateway will be connected with user provided OFC of distance varying from 10 to 100 Km.
Different type of end equipment's will be required for connectivity of OFC of various length.
As discussed during meeting at SAC on 14/09/2018, it is understood that multiple options (Technical & commercial) to be given for end equipment's for connectivity of OFC of different length.
Please confirm.
	Yes

Vendor to quote as follows

1. Up to 20 Km distance

2. 20 to 50 Km distance

3. 50 to 100 Km distance

Single OEM for each option to be quoted

	27. 
	As discussed during meeting at SAC on 14/09/2018, it is understood that Four Nos. of Splitter & Combiner each of 10 Port is to be provided at each Main Gateway for connectivity of Baseband equipment's.
Please confirm.
	Yes. Four Nos. of Splitter & Combiner each of 10 Port is to be provided at each Main Gateway for connectivity of Baseband equipment's.
Active splitters and combiners should be used for the same.

	28. 
	It is understood that each BUC & BDC to support two LO, however one LO will be active at a time.
Please clarify.
	Yes. Vendor may propose any other suitable configuration meeting all specifications in RFP.

	29. 
	It is understood that HMC is to be provided at each Main Gateway only in redundant configuration. Please confirm.
	HMC is 1:1 hot redundant configuration at main gateway only and same HMC will monitor and control diversity site also. Refer Brief Description under section 3.1.

	30. 
	It is understood that all Main Gateway will be connected through user provided media for connectivity of all HMC's.
Please confirm the physical interface required to be catered (Electrical or Optical at HMC for connectivity with user provided  media.
	Refer section 3.4 HMC. IP connectivity for M&C from any remote location which may or may not be the gateway locations.

	31. 
	The antenna Rx frequency range is 17.7 to 19.7 GHz, but the Beacon frequency is 20.2 GHz, which is outside the range of Antenna receive frequency. Please clarify
	Frequency for communication and beacon are disjoint and vendor has to choose the sub-system and configure the system to cater the overall requirements of communication and tracking. 

	32. 
	Please revisit at Storage temperature for indoor equipment's which is up to 700 C, whereas for outdoor equipment's the storage temperature range is u to 600 C.
	Storage temperature for both indoor and outdoor unit is -40 to +60 deg C 

	33. 
	JSS55555 standard is for Military application. Please confirm that all outdoor equipment's will meet the required environment specifications as per commercial standard for outdoor equipment's.
	Equivalent commercial standard is acceptable. Certificate of compliance from OEM will suffice.

	34. 
	Please elaborate the operational requirements and detailed specifications of virus/firewall protection.
	Since, HMC will be operated through local as well as remote locations hence appropriate virus and firewall protection is required.

	35. 
	Delivery schedule of 11 months for supply, installation and commissioning is practically unrealistic because it would need atleast 2 to 3 months for shipping/customs clearance/local transport and further 3-4 months for Installation & Commissioning for antennas and that leaves hardly 4-5 months for the delivery of antenna systems. This is practically not possible as Antenna system and many sub-systems like HPA's, FO, feed components have long lead times more-over quantity is 10 No. Therefore, we request SAC to revise the schedule to atleast 20 months from date of release of Order.
	Delivery schedule as per RFP.

	36. 
	Warranty: It is requested that the Warranty of each site should start on pro-rata & per antenna basis. Kindly confirm.
	Yes

	37. 
	Warranty: In case there is any delay in acceptance test due to non-availability of Satellite beyond 30 days from installation & commissioning, the warranty of the gateway shall be deemed to start from I&C date + 30days. Kindly confirm.
	Yes

	38. 
	Kindly confirm that CAMC/ COMC of each site shall start on pro rata basis after warranty period. Kindly confirm.
	Yes

	39. 
	For any problem reported, the problem shall be attended within 04 hours (excluding the journey time). Kindly confirm.
	For any problem reported, the problem shall be attended within 04 hours (including the journey time). 

	40. 
	Kindly clarify whether common pool of spares is acceptable for all 5 gateways or each set of spares is required at 5 gateways Please clarify.
	It is the vendor who will do the spare management to meet the down time requirements of hub.

	41. 
	Additional Query-Gateway Locations

Query: Purchaser to confirm if the Antenna are to be installed on ground or on roof top, or if bidder is allowed to quote both rates and purchaser will
choose as per availability of the site
	Vendor should quote for the detailed price break-up for rooftop installation in its quote, as an optional item. However, vendor not quoting the rooftop price separately will lead to a conclusion that the installation cost for rooftop and ground is same.

	42. 
	Delivery & Schedule: 11 months delivery schedule for 10x gateways

Query: Complete Delivery and I&C of such 10 Gateway Systems in 11 months is practically not feasible as OEMs doesn't have such capacity available. We suggest the bidder should be allowed for staggered phase wise delivery on pro-rata site wise basis and overall time period should be granted 20 months.
	Delivery schedule as per RFP.

	43. 
	Additional Query- Acceptance of Gateway System

Query: Request Purchaser to confirm the broad acceptance criteria of Gateway site. Will it be basis of G/T as per tender or some other parameters, final ATP document can be decided on later point of time
	ATP will be mutually decided and will cover all major parameters like but not limited to EIRP, G/T, frequency of operation, beacon frequency, ITU mask etc.

	44. 
	Additional Query- HMC and T&M Equipment

Query: Request purchaser to confirm the quantity of HMC and T&M Equipment. Is it for 5 locations in 1:1 redundancy or is it for 10 locations in 1:1 redundancy?
	It is for 5 locations in 1:1 hot redundancy. T&M instruments are meant for only main sites.

	45. 
	Additional Query-Connectivity of 5 Gateway for Master HMC

Query: Please confirm that the connectivity between 5 Earth Stations shall be provided by SAC, ISRO including interfacing equipment. Also, confirm the traffic type.
	Connectivity between 5 Earth Stations shall be provided by SAC but the interfacing equipment will be provided by Vendor.

	46. 
	Additional Query-Annexure 2

Query: We understand that all the proposed products should be capable of operation under standard outdoor conditions (Rain and Dust). Product shall be of COTS (Commercial off the shelf) standard in place of JSS55555 as this particular specifications JSS55555 is specific for military applications.
	Equivalent commercial standard is acceptable. Certificate of compliance from OEM will suffice.

	47. 
	Additional Query-Annexure 2

Query: Indoor Unit Storage Temperature may please be amended, as discussed during pre bid meeting. It should be -40 deg to +60 deg.
	Storage temperature for both indoor and outdoor unit is -40 to +60 deg C

	48. 
	Technical Specification for HPA

Query: As per RFP the Tx Freq. range is 27.5 - 28.5 GHz, with 27.5 - 31 GHz as desirable. We request you to clarify whether the exact band as per requirement as these two bands are in different price range.
	As per RFP the Tx Freq. range is 27.5 - 29.5 GHz (Total 2 GHz BW per pole)

	49. 
	Configuration of BUC and BDC which cover  2 GHz Band, is not clear as per RFP ,Kindly elaborate
	We understand that input of BUC and output of BDC at L- Band will cater 1 GHz BW, only.  Vendor to provide a solution to meet the requirement of 2 GHz bandwidth in transmit and receive chain. Each BUC and BDC (including spares) may have more than one LO, which can be remotely switched through HMC.

	50. 
	Can the Test Loop Translator be a fixed LO or it needs to be Synthesized
	TLT, either it will have 4 fixed LOs (500 MHz apart) or a synthesized LO so that any hub beam can be connected to any user beam to cater 500 MHz (user beam BW) band signal as the main purpose of TLT is to test the network in absence of satellite.

	51. 
	In RFP it is mentioned that you will provide two geographically redundant fiber paths between primary and redundant antenna systems. Please confirm in case of failure in one path switching is done manually and not automatic
	In case of failure in one redundant OFC path between main and diversity site, manual switchover will suffice the requirement. However, vendor is free to choose the switching arrangement as long as it meets down time mentioned in the RFP.



	52. 
	In block diagram separate frequency and timing systems are shown for main and diversity antenna system. This does not provide adequate. Instead we suggest a redundant frequency and timing system at the main antenna in 1:1 configuration providing frequency reference and timing signals to both main and diversity antenna systems to provide better uptime. Please confirm your acceptance
	Both main and diversity sites needs to be synchronized and vendor can choose its own topology as per RFP requirements.

Vendor may also propose 1:1 or any other suitable configurations but in case of equipment failure, vendor has to restore the gateway within downtime mentioned in RFP. 

	53. 
	Please confirm that vendors are free to choose the RF equipment as long as they meet over all specifications even if they do not meet individual sub-system specifications. For example we may use HPA with BUC built in. In this case built in BUC will not meet specifications of individual BUC mentioned in the RFP. However it will meet over all EIRP specifications. Confirm that this is acceptable to you
	Vendor is free to choose the RF equipment as for as it meets the overall project requirements.

eg. In case of integrated BUC with HPA, requirements of uplink power control, input frequency, transmit chain amplitude response etc should be as per the RFP.



	54. 
	Due large bandwidth of 2GHz there will be significant variation of gain across the band. So please confirm that EIRP and G/T specifications are to be met at mid-band only
	Vendor to consider both EIRP and 39 dB/K at mid band frequency. However, appropriate scaling of antenna gain across the desired band will be applied (as per Gant α f2).

	55. 
	Due to multiple bands and polarisation there will 4 no’s of IF signals for RX chain as well as Tx chain.  We feel 1:4 splitter/combiner for each IF signal will provide enough connectivity for 10 baseband operators as each operator will be operating in one polarization only. Please confirm this is acceptable or you need 10 inputs/outputs for each IF signal totaling 40 inputs and 40 outputs
	Four Nos. of Splitter & Combiner each of 10 Port is to be provided at each Main Gateway for connectivity of Baseband equipment's.
Active splitters and combiners should be used for the same.

	56. 
	The typical distance between Main and Diversity sites is 10 km to 50 Km. However, the Vendor shall consider the factors like delay compensation and signal boosting mechanisms in cases of distances varying from 10 km to 100 km.

Query: In case of OFC interfacing equipment, the technology used for 10 Kms, 30 Kms, 50 Kms etc. will be different. Can we quote different price for different distances?
	Yes

Vendor to quote as follows

1. Up to 20 Km distance

2. 20 to 50 Km distance

3. 50 to 100 Km distance

Single OEM for each option to be quoted

	57. 
	One of the site (tentatively Ahmedabad) will be declared as the central site.

Query: What are the functions/requirements of the Central Site other than the Operators?
	Central site will have all administrative rights to monitor and control all the gateways 24x7. 

	58. 
	Total Network Plan along with link analysis

Query: As the baseband and the RUTs are not in scope of this RFP the Link analysis can’t be done. Please confirm.
	It is acceptable.

	59. 
	Hub Monitoring & Control System (HMC) is a centralized Hub management tool or set of tools for Gateway Equipment. It shall provide the integrated hub monitoring and control facility 24 x 7 basis. The HMC system will be independent of Application/ Service provider’s NMS (base band NMS). Baseband NMS is not part of HMC however IP interface to be made available for interfacing baseband NMS as and when the basebands are added.

Query: Is there a requirement of UNMS?
	NMS is not under the scope of this RFP. However, there is a requirement of a central HMC kept at central site (tentatively Ahmedabad) and have all administrative rights to monitor and control all the gateways 24x7.

	60. 
	“For each polarization in transmit chain, BUC redundancy configuration should be 2:1 (two active with one hot standby). Both active BUCs will have different LOs to cover entire 2 GHz in contiguous fashion. In transmit chain, 1 BUC spare with first LO and second spare with other LO”
 
The above mention configuration, We can propose two BUC’s which will be having two different fixed LO but how would be the spare BUC can be redundant for two different LO? Because either the spare BUC will have LO of BUC1 or BUC2.
 
Does it mean the spare BUC will be having a switchable (Selectable) LO, So based on the requirement the Spare BUC will internally change the LO.
 
The similar question is valid for BDC too.

	We understand that input of BUC and output of BDC at L- Band will cater 1 GHz BW, only.  Vendor to provide a solution to meet the requirement of 2 GHz bandwidth in transmit and receive chain. Each BUC and BDC (including spares) may have more than one LO, which can be remotely switched through HMC.

	61. 
	There are two possibilities to address the requirement as defined by Figure 2 , Page 24 and Para 1 , Page 25 of RFP :
a) To have integrated two BUCs (L to Ka band) in the single wide band HPA internally .
b) To have external BUC (L to Ka Band) outside of HPA. Then arrange a switching matrix in Ka Band to achieve redundancy of BUC. As described in Fig 2 Page 24.
We are assessing the possibility to meet the option a) described above. Currently it is under engineering review. We will get back to you on possibility and issues if any on this effort.
 In option b) the figure 2 on page 24 of RFP is not clear on how the spare HPA will be given 2 Nos of  L Bands. Further the Ka band switching matrix of complicated switching system might be a technical challenge.
However, CPI can offer a simpler solution based on switchable LO rather than simultaneous LO. 
Please do let us know if that can be proposed.
	We understand that input of BUC and output of BDC at L- Band will cater 1 GHz BW, only.  Vendor to provide a solution to meet the requirement of 2 GHz bandwidth in transmit and receive chain. Each BUC and BDC (including spares) may have more than one LO, which can be remotely switched through HMC.

However, vendor is free to propose any other suitable configuration meeting all specifications in RFP.

	62. 
	 Each gateway will have main & diversity stations and they are connected through dedicated OFC (dark fiber) at L-Band
Query: Kindly indicate the type of fiber connecting the main and diversity stations (Single mode/mulit-mode). 
	Vendor to consider single mode OFC.

	63. 
	The main station will be the master and should take care of seamless switchover process and delay compensation associated with RF switchover to diversity sites in case of any degradation of signal. The typical distance between Main and Diversity sites is 10 km to 50 Km. However, the Vendor shall consider the factors like delay compensation and signal boosting mechanisms in cases of distances varying from 10 km to 100 km.
Query:

The OFC interface equipment has different options to cater to the distance requirements between the two stations. Accordingly, the cost for the equipment also increases quite substantially with the increasing distance to be covered. It is requested that SAC, ISRO may kindly specify the exact distance between main and diversity stations for which necessary amplification and signal boosting is required in order to bring all Bidders on the same platform for evaluation. 
	Vendor to quote as follows

1. Up to 20 Km distance

2. 20 to 50 Km distance

3. 50 to 100 Km distance

Single OEM for each option to be quoted. 

	64. 
	Purchaser will provide the OFC link (Dark Fiber) between main and diversity stations (with 1:1 redundancy in two isolated geographical paths). The vendor will have to provide necessary equipment to interface with OFC at main & diversity stations for all hubs.
Query: 

Kindly indicate whether OFC interface equipment required is in 1:1 hot standby configuration at both main and diversity stations for each location
	Vendor is free to choose any configuration but our RFP requirements should be met including the down time. 

	65. 
	Purchaser will arrange data connectivity between hubs. Vendor should interface their equipment with arranged hub connectivity
Query: 

Kindly indicate the following with respect to data connectivity between hubs:
1. Capacity of data link connecting the hubs
2. Whether a separate gateway router required for at each station (main and diversity)
3.Redundancy configuration for router
4.Type of interface required
5. No. of interface per station.
	1. Capacity of data link will be 2 Mbps.

2. A separate gateway router will be needed at main earth station on all 5 locations.

3. Vendor is free to choose the redundancy configuration to meet the downtime mentioned in the RFP.

4. IP Interface is required

5. 1 interface at each location (at main station only)



	66. 
	Vendor shall provide a list of inventory of critical spares along with offer in consultation with the OEM, which the vendor will maintain at his own cost for maintenance of services. The list of the critical spares will be reviewed by purchaser at the time of DDR and critical spares will be verified by SAC at the time of commissioning of all stations.
Query: 

Kindly confirm whether critical spares is required to be kept at each main and diversity station. If yes, kindly indicate the quantity required per gateway station. If no, then please confirm that Bidder is free to choose the quantity of critical spares as recommended by the OEM to be stocked at any of the gateway station for catering to the SLA requirements. 
Further, kindly confirm whether concessional GST and CDEC is applicable on procurement of spares also.
	Bidder is free to choose the quantity of critical spares as recommended by the OEM to be stocked at any of the gateway station for catering to the SLA requirements.

	67. 
	 Complete civil work requirements including space and power
Query: 
Necessary space for antenna foundation, room for equipment housing, power, electricity and other amenities at the respective hub sites shall be provided by SAC, ISRO
	Yes

	68. 
	Delivery schedule of the complete Gateway systems including installation, commissioning and testing shall be defined in the offer by the vendor. Total period of delivery, installation, commissioning and testing desirable to 11 (Eleven) months
Query: 

The delivery period of 11 months for 10 Nos. of Ka Band Antennas, RF equipments, and associated electronics is very hard to acheive. Considering the time required for Factory testing, packing, shipping from USA, Custom Clearance, Inland logistics and Installation & commissioning services remains the same, the time left for manufacturing is very short. It is requested to extend the delivery schedule to atleast 20 months.
	It will be as per RFP.

	69. 
	 L- Band Carrier (Transmit & Receive Spectrum) monitoring system to monitor carriers in entire range of L-band either by exclusive instrumentation (i.e. Spectrum analyzer etc.) or by any other solution. Vendors should consider providing this option in the HMC facility. Vendor should also provide the mechanism for monitoring at Ka band for both transmit and receive path. It is apart from the test and measuring equipment being procured under this RFP.
Query: 

Kindly confirm the following:
1. Elaborate on the requirement for L-Band monitoring
2. Whether separate monitoring is required for Ka-Band also and for  all transmit and receive frequencies simultaneously
	1. All Tx and Rx carriers to be monitored at L- Band

2. At Ka- Band, only provision for monitoring at antenna port using coupler is required for both transmit and recieve chains . 

	70. 
	Representative configuration of gateway
Main stations should have L-band interface to connect to multiple baseband systems (upto 10 numbers) with suitable power sharing mechanism
Query: 

Kindly confirm the number of ports to be provisioned in the L-Band splitter/combiner for each polarization and for what capacity in each gateway station.
	Four Nos. of Splitter & Combiner each of 10 Port is to be provided at each Main Gateway for connectivity of Baseband equipment's.
Active splitters and combiners should be used for the same.

	71. 
	Representative configuration of gateway
Query: 

The OEM of HPA has informed of two possibilities to address the requirement as defined by Figure 2 , Page 24 and Para 1 , Page 25 of RFP :
a) To have integrated two BUCs (L to Ka band) in the single wide band HPA internally .

b) To have external BUC (L to Ka Band) outside of HPA. Then arrange a switching matrix in Ka Band to achieve redundancy of BUC. As described in Fig 2 Page 24.

OEMs  are assessing the possibility to meet the option a) described above. Currently it is under engineering review and OEM will revert on possibility and issues if any on this effort.

In option b) the figure 2 on page 24 of RFP is not clear on how the spare HPA will be given 2 Nos of  L Bands. Further the Ka band switching matrix of complicated switching system might be a technical challenge.
Kindly confirm the configuration details. Also, kinldy confirm whether a solution based on switchable LO rather than simultaneous LO is acceptable. Please confirm whether this option can be proposed.
	We understand that input of BUC and output of BDC at L- Band will cater 1 GHz BW, only.  Vendor to provide a solution to meet the requirement of 2 GHz bandwidth in transmit and receive chain. Each BUC and BDC (including spares) may have more than one LO, which can be remotely switched through HMC.

However, vendor is free to propose any other suitable configuration meeting all specifications in RFP.

	72. 
	 Warranty for 3 years
Query: 

It is requested to kindly accept warranty on pro-rata basis for each of the gateway site
	Yes

	73. 
	G/T at 20 degree elevation: 39 dB/K minimum in 17.7 -19.7 GHz frequency band
Query: 

Kindly confirm whether G/T of 39dB/K is over the full band or for the mid-band frequency.
	It is at mid band frequency

	74. 
	Hub monitoring and control
Query: 

Kindly confirm whether HMC is required in 1:1 hot redundant configuration at each main and diversity station. Also, whether HMC is required at the central location also for monitoring all stations. Whether IP interface required for interfacing baseband NMS also, since as per tender document, baseband system shall be catered by multiple vendors  and is not in scope of the tender.
	HMC is 1:1 hot redundant configuration at main gateway only and same HMC will monitor and control diversity site also. Refer Brief Description under section 3.1. 

Refer section 3.4 HMC. IP connectivity for M&C from any remote location which may or may not be the gateway locations.

Baseband NMS is not under the scope of this RFP. But there should be a provision to interface HMC with baseband NMS through IP interface.



	75. 
	Tx/Tx, Rx/Rx port-to-port isolation ≥30dB
Query: 

Since feed is circular, achieving port to port isolation ≥30 dB is not practically possible. Request to modify as ≥20dB.
	The feed is circular

Tx/Tx, Rx/Rx port-to-port isolation ≥18 dB minimum 

	76. 
	As per RFP, CDEC will be issued against Notification No. 5/2018. Since we have not used CDEC against this notification so far, we are not aware of the amount of duty / IGST payable after submitting the CDEC issued against this notification. Hence we request SAC to confirm the % of customs duty / IGST payable for clearing the goods.
	For imported items, Customs Duty Exemption Certificate will be provided by the Purchaser as per Notification No. 50/2017-Customs dt. 30.06.2017 Sl. No. 539 as amended vide Notification No. 5/2018-Customs dt. 25/01/2018. 

If the standard rate is 5%, the calculation will be as detailed below:

a) Standard Rate @5% on the assessable value

b) Social Welfare Surcharges @10% on (a)

c) IGST @5% on assessable value + (a) + (b)

The total will be 10.775% on the customs assessable. 

In terms of the said notification, customs duty is exempted from so much of the duty of customs leviable thereon as is in excess of the amount calculated at the standard rate specified in the corresponding entry in column 4 of the table of the notification. For example, if for any particular item the customs duty is zero, then only the IGST 5@% will be applicable. 

This is exclusive of customs clearance charges.

	77. 
	Whether SAC issue a single PO for the entire RFP requirements including optional items / COMC and issue GST exemption certificate for the whole contact or different POs for supply, Installation & COMC. SAC is requested to issue the PO for the entire requirement, which includes optional COMC to enable ECIL to conclude with OEMS accordingly.
	Single PO will be issued for entire RFP including optional items, if opted. GST concessional certificate will be given for all supply. For services, there is no concession and GST will be as applicable.

	78. 
	Being PSU please allow to submit Indemnity bond in place of BG  for Advance payment.
	Indemnity bond is allowed for PSUs for advance payment. However, for advance payment, appropriate loading will be made for evaluation of the bids as per the RFP.

	79. 
	LD is acceptable on the contract value without taxes / GST only. Taxes / GST has to be paid at actuals. Please find enclosed MOD OM in this regard which says that LD is not applicable on GST portion. Since the procurement is from Govt. of India SAC is requested to confirm LD is not applicable on taxes & duties.
	LD shall be applicable on the basic PO value and not on the taxes and duties.

	80. 
	Whether SO will be released for CAMC separately in view of different Tax rates for supplies & services?
	A single Purchase Order shall be issued which will include CAMC.

	81. 
	GST Exemption certificate to the provided along with SO.

SAC to issue CDEC.
	GST and CDEC certificate will be provided as per the notification mentioned in point no 6. Taxes and Duties of General Terms and Conditions. 

	82. 
	We understand SAC have Custom Duty exception certificate and it will be provided to contractor. Please clarify. Also SAC is entitled with special GST rates. Please share the list of items with GST rates with bidders.
	Refer the notifications mentioned in Taxes and Duties of General Terms and Conditions. For applicable rates for specific list of items, please refer CBEC website in regards to the HSN Code classifications.

	83. 
	We understand payment for Supply will be made on obtaining completion certificate. Please clarify the payment terms for three years AMC.
	For COMC, payment terms will be as per point no 5 of Annexure 1 of the RFP.

	84. 
	SAC will accept the completion of HTS Gateways on pro-rata basis and subsequent warranty period will be initiated accordingly. Please confirm.
	Agreed

	85. 
	Bidders need not to submit EMD along with its Bid Submission. Please confirm.
	For registered vendors, EMD is not applicable. 

	86. 
	Kindly clarify the required Validity of Bids. It is understood that 120 days validity is required to be quoted. Kindly confirm
	120 days validity of bids is applicable in the present case. 

	87. 
	CDEC: Kindly clarify if SAC is eligible for full custom duty exemption or not. If not, kindly intimate the custom duty, additional cess and IGST applicable for SAC. 

Also please clarify whether CDEC will be provided for the spares also which bidder will procure to maintain the SLA during warranty & AMC, However Separate cost as per RFP will not be submit to SAG.
	Refer clarification provided at Sl No 1.

For spares also CDEC will be provided subject to certification by Indenting Officer / Contract Manager /Location Incharge. 

	88. 
	GST: Kindly clarify if SAC is eligible for any concessional GST or not. If yes, kindly intimate the concessional GST rate applicable for SAC.

Also please clarify whether concessional GST will be applicable on the following:-



1. Services



2. AMC

If yes, the kindly specify the concessional GST rate also.
	SAC is eligible for concessional GST as per Notification No. 45/2017-Central Tax dt.14.11.2017 and 47/2017- Integrated Tax (Rate) dt.14.11.2017 for supply of items.

For services SAC is not eligible for concessional GST. 

	89. 
	As per RFP, Part Shipment is not allowed unless specifically agreed by purchaser. We request to allow part delivery and part payment of supply. Please confirm.
	Part-shipment is allowed but within the delivery schedule of 11 months mentioned in the RFP.  But pro-rata payment for part delivery is not allowed.  Whereas per location basis payment can be made after successful installation and acceptance of each location.

	90. 
	we understand that maximum LD shall not exceed 10% of P0 value of the undelivered portions and LD shall be levied only if the delay is attributable to the seller. Kindly confirm.
	Refer Sl. No. 13 and 14 of General Terms & Conditions

	91. 
	Bank Guarantees: It is understood that PSUs are allowed to submit Indemnity Bonds in place of BGs wherever applicable. Kindly confirm.
	PSU can submit Indemnity Bond.

	92. 
	Execution delay attributable to Customer:
Any delay attributable to related Government agencies, or ISRO such as availability and readiness of site, accordance of WPC clearance causing delay in project execution should be over and above the stipulated execution period.
	Agreed.  But sufficient documentary proof for such delay need to be submitted for waiver of Liquidated Damages.  

	93. 
	Downtime due to Customers Part: Any system downtime during warranty! AMC caused by elements not under the scope of vendor such as OFC breakdown. or, Power Supply not available etc. should be outside the scope of the vendor.
	Agreed.  But sufficient documentary proof for such delay need to be submitted for waiver of Down Time Compensation.  

	94. 
	The civil work need to be done against this RFP required clarifications. We understand that civil work required for the antenna and pedestal foundation need to be done by vendor. The rest of the work including provisioning of building, rooms, Air Conditioner, Mains supply and water etc. will be done by purchaser only. However, vendor will provide the details of area required for installation of their equipments. Kindly confirm.
	Agreed.  Provisioning of building, rooms, air conditioner, mains supply and water etc., will be done by purchaser only.

	95. 
	Bidder will coordinate to obtain necessary regulatory clearance/license for establishment of gateways. However, all government charges towards obtaining clearance/license shall be borne by Buyer/User. Kindly confirm.
	Agreed. Documentary proof shall be submitted for the same.  

	96. 
	It is understood that SAC will be the inspection agency for ATP. Kindly confirm.
	Yes SAC or its authorized agency.

	97. 
	Please find enclosed herewith our letter and other enclosures regarding query for exemption in the tender eligibility criteria for Startups recognized by DIPP based on GFR2017.

We request you to please go through our letter and accept to incorporate GFR conditions in the subject tender as well as future tenders of SAC for exemption in eligibility criteria for relevant startups.
	GFR 2017 guidelines Rule 173 (i) in respect of startups will be considered suitably subject to meeting of quality and technical specifications. 

	98. 
	Payment will be made on quarterly basis for hubs at the end of each quarter/Half year after completion of satisfactory service.

Query: We understand that this clause is applicable for CAMC and Hub Operations Payment. We request SAC to mention the Payment Terms for Hardware delivery and I&C so that all the bidders can be evaluated on the same techno-commercial platform.
	Payment terms for COMC will be as per RFP 5.1 (Annexure1). Payment terms of supply and installation & commissioning will be as per our standard General terms and conditions. 

	99. 
	The down time is 4 hours for hubs. The faults reported / lodged from the user must be attended and repaired 4 hours from the time of report of compliant. For each subsequent hour of delay after 4 (four) hours from the time of lodging the compliant, 0.5 % of annual COMC value with ceiling of 10 % of total contract COMC value of gateway

Query: The penalty percentage should be restricted to the annual CAMC contract value of that particular Gateway only. Please confirm.
	Yes

	100. 
	ISRO reserves the right to terminate the contract if the performance of the Vendor is found to be unsatisfactory during its currency of the contract by giving one month’s notice in writing without any financial implications on either side

Query: There should not be any change in the requirement after placement of the PO.
1. Termination for any hardware order shall adversely impact financially to the Vendor hence termination activity should only be exercised in the
extreme situation after granting the cure period of 30 days.
2. For reoccurring services (COMC) 

Request you to exercise termination right if:
(a). anyone of the gateway is consistently down for 30 days
(b). And supplier fails to restore the performance even in 30 days, i.e. cure period of 30 days should be provided.
	Yes

	101. 
	On award of the Purchase Order/Contract the successful bidder shall submit Security Deposit within 15 days of receipt of Purchase Order/Contract, as per the format provided by the Purchaser, for 10% of the Purchase Order value through Bank Guarantee or Fixed Deposit Receipt for satisfactory execution of the Purchase Order.
Central PSUs / PSEs / Autonomous Bodies shall be
exempted from submitting Security Deposit. However, they shall be required to submit an Indemnity Bond in lieu of Security Deposit

Query: Request you to consider the following:
1. As discussed in Pre bid meeting, it was agreed that PBG will be provided on annual validity basis. Please confirm.
2.We assume that only one PBG covering Warranty/CMAC will have to be submitted and the same would be released post 60 days of warranty/guarantee period
	PBG can be submitted on annual validity basis, provided the BG validity is extended two months in advance.  You can submit one instrument both for Security Deposit and Performance Bank Guarantee valid beyond 60 days of completion of warranty period plus CAMC period.  

	102. 
	Should the Contractor fail to rectify the defects, the Purchaser shall have the right to reject or repair or replace at the cost of the Contractor the whole or any portion of the defective stores.

Query: We request that the Risk purchase/repair should be capped to 100% cost of the faulty equipment.
	It is not agreeable 

	103. 
	Dispute, if any, shall be settled mutually, failing which it shall be referred to a one-man arbitrator appointee by the Director, SAC, Ahmedabad in accordance with Arbitration Act 1996, whose decision shall be final and binding on both the parties.

Query: Given clause is for sole arbitration which is contradictory with GCC Arbitration Clause. Request you to keep GCC Arbitration Clause applicable for this RFP
	The arbitration shall be in terms of GCC.  

	104. 
	DELAY IN COMPLETION / LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

If the Contractor fails to execute the Purchase Order within the time specified in the contract/purchase order or any extension thereof, the Purchaser shall recover from the Contractor as liquidated damages a sum of 0.5% of the PO/Contract value of the undelivered stores for each calendar week of delay or part thereof. The total liquidated damages shall not exceed 10% of the PO/Contract value. Stores will be deemed to have been delivered only when all their components, parts are also delivered. If certain components are not delivered in time, the stores will be considered as delayed until such time as the missing parts are delivered.

Query: Please consider the following changes in the clause, as the LD should be applicable on the delayed/undelivered portion:
If the Contractor fails to execute the Purchase Order within the time specified in the contract/purchase order or any extension thereof, the Purchaser shall recover from the Contractor as liquidated damages a sum of 0.5% of the PO/Contract value of the undelivered stores for each calendar week of delay or part thereof. The total liquidated damages shall not exceed 10% of the delayed items value.PO/Contract value. Stores will be deemed to have been delivered only when all their components, parts are also delivered. If certain components are not delivered in time, the stores will be considered as delayed until such time as the missing parts are delivered. Also, the total
LDs/penalties for delay in delivery, delay in installation penalties or any other penalty/LD cumulatively should not exceed 5% of the total contract value
	It is not agreeable.

	105. 
	Payment Terms for supply

Query:Request ISRO to specify payment terms for Supply of equipment. Also confirm that payment would be processed on pro-rata site wise basis.
	Payment can be made on pro-rata site wise basis after supply, installation and commissioning and acceptance of the particular site.  

	106. 
	Additional Query-PO Placement in case of Foreign Bidder

Query: Request ISRO to confirm that USD billing is allowed for both Supply and services. Bidder will supply and bill the equipment from foreign location and Indian subsidiary will do the services portion. Since the bid format allows only one currency, hence USD currency will be used. Services portion can be freezed taking USD-INR conversion rate on date of opening of the tender. Supply PO to be placed to Bidder Foreign entity
and services PO to be placed to Bidder Indian entity
	One Purchase Order will be released for both Supply and Services.  Whereas Supply portion payment will be released in Foreign Currency and Service portion will be paid to Indian Agent in Indian Rupees taking the conversion rate prevailing on the date of opening of tender.  It shall be explicitly mentioned in the bid about the payment for services to the Indian Entity.  

	107. 
	Additional Query- Exclusion of Taxes

Query: Purchaser to clarify if all bidders to quote for prices which are exclusive of taxes to arrive at common ground.
	Please refer Sl.No.2 of General Terms and Conditions, 2.5 of Section 2 of RFP.  

	108. 
	Additional Query-LD Capping

Query: Purchaser to confirm if L.D is applied per Antenna wise for delivery and not on full Supply value. LD shall be 0.5% per week and part thereof on the delayed value of supply to a maximum of 10% of the delayed value of the equipment
	Not agreeable.

	109. 
	Additional Query-Delay due to Statutory/System

Query: Purchaser to confirm if any delay is caused due to permissions , material movement documentation, non availability of slot to do MPVT, delay is finalizing sites which is good to install Antenna, non availability of satellite transponders then any L.D / Penalty will not be imposed on bidder as its not under its control. Any such delay shall be excluided from the LD calculation.
	Agreed if the delay is attributable to SAC.

	110. 
	Additional Query-Start of Warranty and AMC

Query: Purchaser to confirm for warranty and AMC will be pro-rata basis for each Antenna Gateway as the Installation and acceptance for each antenna gateway will be at different time.
	Agreed.  Payment will be made on pro-rate basis as mentioned in the tender.  

	111. 
	Additional Query-ERV Clause

Query: Purchaser to confirm on ERV (Exchange rate variation) clause and if there is any variation of +/- 2.5 %, bidder/purchaser will be compensated
accordingly.
	Not agreed.  The prices shall be firm and fixed.  

	112. 
	Additional Query-Ownership Transfer and Insurance

Query: Purchaser to confirm if the supply is to be made FOR destination. Also confirm as when will these Antenna transfer to books of ISRO and till what point insurance of the equipment is to be taken by bidder.
	Insurance is not required at our cost.  Ownership transfer of these Antenna will happen only after installation and acceptance of each Antenna Gateway System at each location.  

	113. 
	Additional Query-Security aspects post-delivery

Query: Purchaser to confirm about the security aspect of the Gateway locations. Post material delivery, bidder has no control over the Antenna equipment or its parts as it will be at Purchaser consignee location. We request Purchaser to take control of Antenna as and when its delivered to the end locations
	Title of ownership will be passed to buyer only after completion of the installation and acceptance of the Gateway System at each site.  However, it will be at Government premises, security should not be a concern.  

	114. 
	Additional Query-PDI/Inspection

Query: Purchaser to confirm if any PDI inspection test of equipment at foreign location is to be done or acceptance is done only at Purchaser consignee
locations only
	Acceptance is done only as mentioned in RFP.

	115. 
	Additional Query-Eligibility Criteria

Query: Purchaser to confirm on the eligibility criteria for "similar type of work" as a) Bidder must have supplied, Installed, Commissioned, doing Operation and Maintenance (for 5 or more years) of clause 2.3 (a), (b), (c) is mandatory or is it allowed for bidder who have done either supply or
install or commission or maintain for clause 2.3 (a), (b), (c). Request purchaser to clearly define "Similar work" as documents needs to be uploaded accordingly. We do understand that (a), (b), (c) is to be done for same antenna installation.
	Please refer 2.3 of Gneral Terms and Conditions of Section 2 of RFP.  Our RFP requirement is firm and final.  

	116. 
	Additional Query

Query: Purchaser is requested to confirm if bidder along with its subsidaries / group companies with relavent experience is allowed to bid as single entity. Will Purchaser place PO on the request of bidder on its group companies where bidder will be resposible for its supply and services provided by its group companies.
	Consortium bidding is not allowed. Refer point 8  at General guidelines to the vendors and other Terms and Conditions of RFP.  

	117. 
	Nil
	Considering that the title of the items pass-on to the Buyer after installation and acceptance of each Antenna Gateway System, any transaction on High Sea Sales will not be feasible.   

	118. 
	Nil
	For all the items & services the bidders shall provide HSN Code.  


